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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Good

          3  afternoon. The Committee on Consumer Affairs will

          4  now begin. Good afternoon, everyone. Welcome to the

          5  joint hearing of the Finance and Consumer Affairs

          6  Committee. Today we will examine the Fiscal 2000

          7  Executive Budget for the Department of Consumer

          8  Affairs. As always, we are concerned about important

          9  budgetary issues and proposals that would impact on

         10  the agency's critical mandate of protecting,

         11  informing and servicing our City's millions of

         12  consumers.

         13                 The Consumer Affairs Committee is

         14  especially concerned about the recent trend of DCA

         15  budget plans being proposed by the Administration

         16  that ultimately failed to occur. These actions

         17  either end being absorbed as cuts without a

         18  rationale, such as the cutting of DCA inspectors

         19  through technological productivity that never

         20  occurred, or they end up being reversed such as last

         21  year's collections, transfer reversal and this

         22  year's CAMIS transfer reversal with the Department

         23  of Finance.

         24                 It is obvious to this Committee that

         25  such poor planning and execution indicates a lack of
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          2  a serious commitment to this agency's important work

          3  on the part of the Administration.

          4                 It also increases the Committee's

          5  skepticism in regards to future proposals that will

          6  impact this Department. Nevertheless, as always, we

          7  look forward to working together wherever possible

          8  to resolve outstanding issues. We welcome

          9  Commissioner Polonetsky.

         10                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Thank you,

         11  Chairwoman Koslowitz, for that inspiring

         12  introduction. And members of the Finance Committee

         13  and Consumer Affairs Committee, thanks for the

         14  opportunity to testify today on the Mayor's Fiscal

         15  Year 2000 budget as it relates to our agency.

         16                 Before I begin, let me update you on

         17  some of the work that has been proceeding at the

         18  Department since we met in March when we discussed

         19  the preliminary budget.

         20                 As you do know, the Department's

         21  largest ongoing initiative, at least one of our

         22  largest ongoing initiatives, is our tobacco

         23  enforcement program, which is designed to ensure

         24  that merchants do not illegally sell tobacco

         25  products to minors.
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          2                 During the second phase of this

          3  project, which began in February and will end in

          4  September, we have completed 1,747 inspections, and

          5  have issued close to 700 violations to merchants for

          6  selling cigarettes to our undercover minor

          7  inspectors. That is a hit rate of 38 percent, which

          8  is a vast improvement over the 51 percent of

          9  merchants who were selling to our inspectors when

         10  the first phase of the project began just over a

         11  year ago.

         12                 I know you agree with me, however,

         13  that this hit rate of 38 percent is still way too

         14  high, and am looking forward therefore to our

         15  continuing discussions on the tobacco licensing bill

         16  introduced by the Mayor earlier this year. I am

         17  confident that these stiffer fines and the new

         18  licensing requirements included in the bill will

         19  lead to fewer merchants illegally selling to minors.

         20                 Another one of our ongoing projects

         21  has been assisting the Department of Information

         22  Technology and Telecommunications as it formulates

         23  its pay phone franchise agreements by our

         24  inspections of pay phones that are currently on the

         25  streets.
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          2                 The information that the Department

          3  collects, which includes cleanliness, as well as 911

          4  functionality is used and will be used by DoITT to

          5  help determine which companies should be given or

          6  should have their franchises continued.

          7                 The Department recently completed

          8  reissuing newsstand licenses as required by the

          9  Council's Local Law 298. When we last met in March

         10  275 of the 323 existing newsstands had received

         11  their new licenses. Since then, concern that we

         12  would be terminating a license for a vendor who for

         13  one reason or another didn't get the message or

         14  wasn't able to properly communicate, there are a

         15  substantial number of disabled vendors operating

         16  these newsstands, we visited every one of the

         17  newsstands that didn't respond to the agency to

         18  determine whether they were still operating or

         19  whether the stand was abandoned.

         20                 Twenty-one additional newsstand

         21  operators did come in, renewing their licenses for a

         22  total of 296. Fifteen others were abandoned and were

         23  removed. There are 12 remaining newsstands, those

         24  are being inspected by DOT, those that don't pass

         25  inspection will be removed from the streets. Those
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          2  that do will be distributed to people who are on the

          3  waiting list looking for a new newsstand.

          4                 As promised, I would also like to

          5  update you on the work of our newly created Home

          6  Improvement Contractor Task Force.  This group, as

          7  well as attorneys, are focusing on home contractors

          8  who are operating without licenses, as well as

          9  contractors who owe substantial restitution for

         10  consumers.

         11                 In the past two weeks alone that

         12  squad has seized vehicles from four unlicensed

         13  contractors. As a result, those contractors have

         14  come in, applied for licenses, but of course as a

         15  condition for getting those licenses, have been

         16  forced to pay fines, as well as refund to consumers

         17  nearly $50,000 in restitution for work they properly

         18  didn't do or work in an improper way.

         19                 That money will be distributed to 15

         20  consumers. There are a number of others, as well,

         21  some of whose complaints actually date back as far

         22  as 1990.

         23                 We actually had to track somebody

         24  down at a nursing home, frankly, because they had

         25  long ago left their home because of one particular
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          2  contractor and the work he did, and she was very

          3  pleased to learn that she would finally be getting

          4  some compensation for the damages that was done to

          5  her.

          6                 That is a brief synapsis of some of

          7  the things that have been happening at the

          8  Department since March.

          9                 Let me now turn to the budget and

         10  begin with a summation of the Fiscal Year'99

         11  numbers. In our January preliminary budget, DCA has

         12  predicted Fiscal Year '99 revenues to be

         13  $11,622,000. The new exec budget now estimates the

         14  Fiscal Year '99 revenue for the agency to be

         15  $12,195,000. That roughly half a million dollar

         16  difference is due to several factors, recognizing

         17  now the income City agency, the revenue to the

         18  agency, as a result of our issuing of newsstand

         19  licenses, as well as the performance that we have

         20  seen to date, recognizing the agency has been

         21  increasing a greater number of violations in certain

         22  categories.

         23                 We have also seen an increase in the

         24  number of electronic stores applying for licenses,

         25  as a result of some of our enforcement sweeps that
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          2  have focused on electronic stores that are selling

          3  refurbished items, as well as our increased

          4  vigilance in this particular area in general we have

          5  seen an increase, and frankly, because of a growing

          6  economy in some new stores that have been coming

          7  into New York.

          8                 In our January prelim budget, our '99

          9  expenses were expected to be $11,900,000. We are now

         10  predicting that our '99 expenses will be

         11  $12,045,000. The change is due to the way the CAMIS

         12  computer system will continue to be administered.

         13                 As you know, TLC, DOT, and DOH are

         14  all on or going to be going on CAMIS, the system

         15  which was originally designed primarily for DCA. Now

         16  currently, as you know, DCA supports both DCA and

         17  DOH activities on this system. TLC is now on the

         18  system as well, and there are potential plans for

         19  other agencies to come on in the future.

         20                 The initial thinking was as a result

         21  of this expansion of CAMIS, the personnel at DCA's

         22  MIS Department would go over to finance which would

         23  serve as a central programming operations location

         24  for all of the agencies that were on CAMIS.

         25                 It has been determined that it would
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          2  be more efficient and more effective if each agency

          3  handled its own CAMIS needs, developing the programs

          4  they need for their CAMIS use, and as a result,

          5  those lines have been transferred back to DCA, and

          6  of course, as we mentioned earlier, those personnel

          7  have never left.

          8                 For Fiscal 2000 we expect revenue of

          9  $14,298,000 compared to the preliminary budget

         10  prediction which was 13,800,000. Two reasons for

         11  that half a million dollar change: the agency will

         12  in the upcoming budget be hiring another

         13  administrative law judge that will increase to some

         14  degree our revenue, and will also speed up the time

         15  that consumers who today may have to wait two or

         16  three months for a hearing and then a decision.  By

         17  having an additional administrative law judge, we

         18  will be processing our cases quickly, but we will

         19  also see an increase in revenue as a result of that,

         20  so that is a good efficiency.

         21                 We continue to increase our focus on

         22  stoopline stand enforcement, and we have seen the

         23  numbers increase there this year, and we expect that

         24  we will continuing issuing an increasing number of

         25  violations in this category, and so our budget
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          2  reflects increased revenue as a result.

          3                 Fiscal Year 2000 the Department

          4  expects expenses of $12,267,000, compared to our

          5  preliminary prediction of $12,055,000. That is

          6  primarily the expense addition back to our budget of

          7  those CAMIS employees, as well as the new

          8  administrative law judge.

          9                 Year-to-year comparing Fiscal Year

         10  '99 to Fiscal Year 2000, our expense budget has

         11  increased by a quarter of a million dollars.

         12  $170,000 of that is OTPS, $52,000 PS. The

         13  year-to-year revenue comparison shows an increase of

         14  a little more than $2 million, $12,195,000 in Fiscal

         15  '99 to $14,298,000 in Fiscal Year 2000. The revenue

         16  there, the new DCA tobacco license, assuming the

         17  progress with the Council and the licenses created,

         18  an increase in tobacco fines tied again to the

         19  increased ability to enforce the result of that

         20  license, the revenue that we expect as the addition

         21  of the new ALJ, as well as the increased stoopline

         22  stand violations.

         23                 From the headcount, we have projected

         24  a staff of 249, which includes five new people at

         25  DCA, in anticipation of the DCA tobacco retailer
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          2  license. That is an increase of three people since

          3  the preliminary budget in January, as you remember

          4  we already reflected the anticipated new heads as a

          5  result of the new tobacco license, the new item

          6  there is the formal return of those CAMIS employees

          7  in the Exec budget.

          8                 We have 28 Begin program participants

          9  at the agency, we currently have 26 work experience

         10  program employees.

         11                 That is the end of my prepared

         12  statement and I am of course looking forward to

         13  responding to your questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         15  Before we begin I would like to recognize my

         16  colleagues, Council Member Lasher, Council Member

         17  Robles, Council Member Robinson, Council Member

         18  Freed and Council Member Sabini, Council Member

         19  Eristoff.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Thank you.

         21                 Let me also reintroduce to you and

         22  the members the staff --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And Council

         24  Member Fiala.

         25                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY:-- The staff
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          2  that are here with me today. Our Director of

          3  Finance, to my right, Jeff Roseman; Director of

          4  Program and Policy Mike Haberman; Andy Eiler of our

          5  legislative staff who joins me on this side.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

          7                 Peter Bruno, Finance; Jim Caras,

          8  Counsel; and Barbara Turkewitz, policy analyst.

          9                 We were pleased to see the

         10  restoration of three positions from the aborted

         11  CAMIS transfer included in the Executive Budget of

         12  DCA. What is the outlook for restoring the eight

         13  positions lost by DCA from the hand-held computer

         14  productivity plan that never happened?

         15                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Well, the

         16  Council I guess in effect restored four of those

         17  when you made the -- in the November plan, I guess,

         18  when you added the PPT overtime as part of our

         19  permanent revenue, so I think we have currently

         20  attrited for and that is I think all we plan to

         21  currently attrit.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. I am

         23  told that really has nothing to do with it. We

         24  adopted that last year, it was in the budget last

         25  year that we put in for.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: If we are on

          3  the same wavelength, we initially had 88 inspectors,

          4  we lost eight as a result of the proposed hand-held

          5  peg, and the Council then added to our PS when you

          6  took some of the money that had been added by OMB

          7  into our budget labeled pay phone inspector

          8  overtime, and made that part of our overall PS

          9  budget.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I am told that

         11  we should be at 92 and not at 84, that should be the

         12  number.

         13                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Well, let me

         14  answer in general I guess without -- we don't expect

         15  -- we are getting two additional inspectors in this

         16  budget tied to the tobacco license, but we don't

         17  expect to receive any others to replace the

         18  hand-held peg. We do expect the hand-held computers

         19  to be part of the future of the agency. We currently

         20  are waiting for a Citywide project, since a number

         21  of agencies all were proceeding separately on

         22  different versions of what theoretically should be

         23  done in a unified way, and so we are waiting for a

         24  Citywide prototype, so we do expect that to be part

         25  of the future. I do find that we are exceeding all

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  of our performance numbers, based on the number of

          3  inspectors we have today, and, frankly, think that

          4  the agency is meeting all of the consumer protection

          5  needs that we --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: There is no

          7  question to me that you are doing a fantastic job.

          8  But I know that we keep passing bills that keep

          9  requiring more inspections. So, obviously, when we

         10  pass bills that require inspections, such as the

         11  tobacco bill and we have a furniture bill coming out

         12  and a few others, that will require, you know,

         13  manpower to be out there, and without neglecting

         14  everything else that is there. So, certainly we

         15  would like to see you have the full compliment of

         16  inspectors in your budget, and they are able to

         17  fulfill all of these different legislative

         18  initiatives that we are putting forth and the

         19  Administration is putting forth, and we want them to

         20  be enforced, because laws are only as good as if

         21  they are made to be obeyed, and the only way they

         22  could be made to be obeyed is by having inspectors

         23  out there. So, that is our goal. So we will keep

         24  harping on this until, at least for the next two and

         25  a half years.
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          2                 Is the agency receiving a full-time

          3  budgeted position as a result of the addition of one

          4  administrative law judge, or simply the funding of

          5  $50,000?

          6                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: That is

          7  going to be a per diem position. If it is not going

          8  to be a new line, it is going to be a $50,000 per

          9  diem administrative law judge, similar to -- as

         10  opposed to a line.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: What is DCA's

         12  actual headcount at present in Fiscal 1999?

         13                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Our actual

         14  headcount right now is 233.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And where are

         16  the vacancies?

         17                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Our

         18  vacancies are as follows. We have a number of pars

         19  that we are awaiting approval, as well as a number

         20  of employees who have been approved, and we are just

         21  waiting for a start date. We had two vacancies in

         22  our Legal Department. We have filled both of those,

         23  one of the new lawyers is showing up as of the 1st

         24  of January to replace an attorney who left our

         25  agency, and the second employee, we are awaiting a
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          2  start date, she is an employee at Corp Counsel who

          3  is going to be coming over to replace one of the

          4  other legal vacancies. So, two of those are legal

          5  positions that we expect to fill very shortly.

          6                 We have made an offer and are

          7  awaiting a start date for our new disciplinary

          8  advocate to replace our previous confidential

          9  investigator who left recently. In fact, our new

         10  purchasing agents start very shortly as well. We had

         11  some, a little bit more turn-over than we usually do

         12  with a number of lawyers leaving in a short period

         13  of time, as well as a purchasing agent who is a

         14  long-time employee who moved on to another agency.

         15                 We have just promoted our Deputy

         16  Director of Adjudication to be the Director of

         17  Adjudication, our previous director had left but had

         18  a good amount of leave and other time that had to be

         19  used up and so we have now a vacancy for a Deputy

         20  Director of Adjudication.

         21                 We also have a position open in

         22  Consumer Services. The Acting Director who replaced

         23  former Director Adam Barnett who is now the

         24  Assistant Commissioner, has become the Director of

         25  Consumer Services, so we have a position open in
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          2  Consumer Services as well, and we have three, four

          3  vacancies on the inspector lines.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Was that

          5  three?

          6                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Four.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Four.

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: There is one

          9  inspector who is on leave, he has gone to another

         10  agency, but we have held open his position, if he

         11  wants to return, that is until September, so if he

         12  elects not to come back to the agency we will be

         13  filling that vacancy, and then we have one person

         14  who is out on child care leave.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. Did that

         16  add up to 13?

         17                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I hope it

         18  did. It should have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

         20                 The Fiscal Year 2000 plan calls for

         21  savings of $100,000 through OTPS pre-purchase funded

         22  by a surplus in the current year. DCA did the same

         23  the last year to save $40,000.

         24                 At our preliminary budget hearing in

         25  March you testified that most of your surplus of
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          2  $100,000 came from the maternity leave of your

          3  Deputy Commissioner. However, an internal OMB budget

          4  mod of February 23rd, 1999, clearly shows the

          5  $100,000 transfer from UA 002 licensing and

          6  enforcement to UA 003 OTPS. That would mean that the

          7  surplus came solely from the vacant licensing and

          8  enforcement positions and not from the

          9  administrative UA 001, as you stated. Can you

         10  explain this?

         11                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Yes, I

         12  believe so. When I described the reason we have an

         13  overall PS surplus that was available to be

         14  transferred, I referred to the approximately $50,000

         15  which the agency was going to have as surplus as a

         16  result of the six-month maternity leave of the

         17  Deputy Commissioner, part of the surplus as well

         18  that was transferred over came from the budget also

         19  had assumed PS costs for our land administrators who

         20  did not come on until later in the year. And so, the

         21  general PS surplus at the agency resulted from the

         22  different positions either that were open. Why the

         23  mod came from one U of A or another, you know, could

         24  have just been tied to the practicality of where the

         25  surplus happens to have accrued.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: In our

          3  preliminary budget hearing in March, it was

          4  suggested that you review the productivity plans for

          5  City buildings inspectors that requires a 40-hour

          6  week. Have you, and do you feel it can be applied to

          7  your Department?

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Give me that

          9  again, please.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: At the

         11  preliminary budget hearing in March it was suggested

         12  that you review the productivity plans for City

         13  Buildings inspectors that require 40 hours, and have

         14  you -- and do you feel it can apply to your

         15  department?

         16                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: It is

         17  certainly something we can look at.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Because

         19  Council Member Spigner had suggested that in March.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We will

         21  certainly look at it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Has DCA

         23  followed through and utilized the $10,000 it

         24  received this year to upgrade the fingerprinting

         25  system for licenses?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We are doing

          3  that as we speak.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, thank

          5  you.

          6                 Council Member Eristoff.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you.

          8                 Just very briefly, Commissioner, on a

          9  couple of technology-related items.

         10                 You just said that you are using

         11  $10,000 for fingerprint imaging? Are you planning to

         12  appropriate any new amounts for that project in the

         13  next fiscal year?

         14                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: That should

         15  be completed in a very brief period of time. So we

         16  don't anticipate rolling over anything tied to that

         17  project.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: There is

         19  nothing additional required.

         20                 The hand-held computer initiative,

         21  you spoke of that with the chair, do you have

         22  anything set aside for that budget? Or is it now

         23  firmly in the hands of the Citywide initiative?

         24                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The latter.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.
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          2                 The telephone upgrade that was

          3  mentioned in I believe the most recent MMR, have you

          4  proceeded with that and what are its budget

          5  implications?

          6                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Dyrad

          7  (phonetic), the company that has managed our IVR, is

          8  currently this week making a number of changes to

          9  our system. They are making a couple of Y2K changes

         10  that are necessary to ensure that the system is

         11  completely compatible. They are also upgrading us to

         12  a bit more efficient a system that has some of the

         13  features that we certainly needed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And what are

         15  the budget implications?

         16                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We received

         17  $33,000 from the City's Y2K fund to be able to do

         18  that upgrade, and so there isn't any overall budget

         19  implication to the agency, it is going to come out

         20  of that pot of money.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, so you

         22  don't need anything additional in Fiscal 2000.

         23                 And speaking to Y2K, you have sort of

         24  nibbled at the edges here, but in a global sense how

         25  are we doing, and what is it costing?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Well, for

          3  better or worse, the agency I think a decade ago was

          4  far behind the 8 ball when it came to having the

          5  technology that it needed. Luckily the system that

          6  we rely upon is only a handful of years old and so

          7  it was within a Y2K compliant mode. We have been

          8  generating licenses for a number of years that

          9  expire beyond the Year 2000, and as we speak today

         10  we issue licenses that are two-year licenses, and so

         11  all throughout this year we have been issuing things

         12  expiring in 2001, 2002.

         13                 We initially certified CAMIS, our

         14  database, as Y2K compatible. The Taxi and Limousine

         15  Commission, as you know, has spent a good deal of

         16  time bringing itself onto CAMIS. They initially were

         17  working in the same database area at DoITT as our

         18  agency, and the concern was that some of the changes

         19  that they might be making to the CAMIS programming

         20  system might affect, you know, Y2K way, part of our

         21  system. And so we hadn't ever completely finished

         22  the certification of CAMIS, though we knew it was

         23  Y2K compatible and hadn't done a lot of the initial

         24  testing because of the reality that there were

         25  changes currently being made by another agency on
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          2  the system.

          3                 TLC currently, because of some

          4  programming issues, has ended up recreating its

          5  CAMIS system in a separate area of the database now,

          6  and so although they are using a CAMIS, they are

          7  working on a CAMIS/TLC program system which does not

          8  interfere or interact with our licensing files or

          9  our licensing system, and so we this week, now that

         10  TLC is no longer irrelevant to our CAMIS database

         11  programming, we are now completing the Y2K

         12  certification and running the final tests, but we

         13  don't have any problems there.

         14                 The only I think issue that we did

         15  have was upgrading our IVR, that is happening this

         16  week and hopefully will be done by the end of the

         17  week. We did have some older PCs, which we have been

         18  replacing. We purchased 200, 50 came in several

         19  months ago, 15 more have arrived over the last

         20  couple of weeks. We expect 100 more, and those are

         21  all coming with Y2K compatible windows and T

         22  platforms.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And in terms

         24  of the budget implication of that program?

         25                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: That is all
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          2  from money that had been previously allocated as a

          3  capital allocation for this agency to purchase a LAN

          4  and we are in the middle of, the new computers have

          5  arrived, the servers have arrived and we are

          6  probably a month or two away from having, I hope,

          7  our LAN up and running, there is some construction

          8  to physically accommodate the space that is going

          9  on.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And how much

         11  is the LAN effort costing?

         12                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The total

         13  LAN budget was about 1.2 million. That includes

         14  money for training, it includes some construction

         15  costs. We have actually moved our MIS Department

         16  from an adjacent building into our DCA 42 Broadway

         17  headquarters, the new servers, the new computers and

         18  so forth, so 1.2 million. And that also includes a

         19  LAN administrator, and a LAN consulting contract.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Great.

         21                 So, in other words, the new PCs that

         22  you have, which happen to be Year 2000 compliant,

         23  were purchased also with this 1.2 million. So it is

         24  all part of a larger package?

         25                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: It is all
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          2  part of that $1.2 million capital allocation for our

          3  new LAN.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: So the

          6  timing worked out good for us. If we had this money

          7  two years ago and perhaps not been aware, as we are

          8  today, we might have been in the position of having

          9  to spend a lot of money upgrading. But luckily this

         10  LAN purchase came at just the right time, so we were

         11  able to get on the cusp.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And that was

         13  a '99 capital item?

         14                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: That's

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And you have

         17  spent it all or are spending it all?

         18                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSY: We are

         19  chewing our way through it nicely. There are still,

         20  I would estimate we spent about half of it, we have

         21  already spent for the computers, we have already

         22  bought the servers, which are the biggest chunks of

         23  money. We still need some of the software and there

         24  will still be some electrical work, the consulting

         25  contract, which is about $50,000 and so forth.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: It sounds

          3  like you are actually doing a major upgrade of your

          4  systems, and it just happens to coincide with the

          5  Year 2000 situation.

          6                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

          7                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

          9  Freed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         11                 I just had one question about dealing

         12  with street vendors, always my favorite area.

         13                 I have noticed in parts of my

         14  district that a lot of the streets that were

         15  previously restricted now actually have vendors on

         16  and general vendors, like say West Broadway and

         17  SoHo, and I am wondering how --

         18                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: They

         19  shouldn't be there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, I know.

         21                 Although, I guess my question really

         22  evolves around how do you determine what is art and

         23  what is not?

         24                 I have got a guy who is selling

         25  fountains.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Fountains?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Fountains, yes.

          4  Water fountains. Taking up about three quarters of

          5  the pathway on the sidewalk, and I am sure the guy

          6  is going to say it is art.

          7                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I would err

          8  on the side of considering that garden ornament or

          9  whatever that fountain is suitable for -- I think

         10  the question is one that needs an answer when it is

         11  clear, but when actually it is on the cusp we will

         12  use Corp Counsel's direction. If he is doing that in

         13  a restricted location, then we don't care whether it

         14  is art or not. You can't sell it at all if it is a

         15  restricted location.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, it is

         17  restricted to general vending, but it is not

         18  restricted to food vendors.

         19                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Okay. Well,

         20  then he is permitted. We can seek legal guidance

         21  from Corp Counsel, if it is not something that is

         22  very clear to us. And in some cases we need to go to

         23  court and let the judge decide what is art and what

         24  is not.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, great.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: It is a

          3  conundrum for both the Police Department and us.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes.

          5                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: In addition,

          6  one of the quirks of course. Since disabled vendors

          7  are permitted to vend from locations where others

          8  are not, you are in the position of having areas

          9  that are barred to all vendors including art, but

         10  are open only to disabled vendors when a disabled

         11  vendor is there. But once it is open for a disabled

         12  vendor, it therefore legally is open to an artist or

         13  somebody selling something that they claim is art,

         14  only while that disabled vendor is there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. All

         16  right, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

         18  Robinson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

         20  very much, Chairwoman Koslowitz.

         21                 Commissioner, my question goes to, in

         22  regards to you indicated on your testimony on page

         23  five that you have 28 Begin Program participants and

         24  26 WEP workers. Could you tell me what do they do in

         25  the office of Consumer Affairs?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Well, let me

          3  also tell you that we have hired five and are

          4  awaiting approval of our sixth hire here, which is a

          5  big number for a fairly small agency. Many of -- I

          6  would say almost all of the entry level positions

          7  that have been filled at the agency over the last

          8  couple of months have gone to WEP participants or

          9  Begin workers. They do a number of different issues.

         10  They assist our clerical staff inputting information

         11  into our CAMIS system, they work in our mail room,

         12  helping us get mailings out, assisting our mail room

         13  personnel in collating and putting together

         14  mailings. We have one or two who are in our press

         15  office helping the volume of phone calls and mail

         16  that we get there, just sprinkled throughout the

         17  agency where they help supplement other employees

         18  and many of them have developed a real good feel for

         19  the work that the employees who are near them or who

         20  they assist do, and, frankly, they have been the

         21  best qualified people for vacancies that have

         22  opened.

         23                 We have a number that are in our

         24  licensing division where they might be retrieving

         25  files, as a result they learn the way the licensing
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          2  system works, how our filing is and when a position

          3  opens in licensing. They are familiar with the

          4  environment, they are familiar to some degree with

          5  the different requirements, and they have been some

          6  of our most motivated new employees.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Have they

          8  fulfilled any of the jobs of those persons that were

          9  previously employed by the agency? I am not talking

         10  about those that you have hired, I am talking about

         11  those working as WEP or Begin, the WEP or Begin

         12  workers?

         13                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: No, we don't

         14  have --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: What were

         16  the previous -- did you have those jobs before?

         17                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: You did not.

         19  These are created positions that you put there to be

         20  able to provide a work experience; is that correct?

         21                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: A

         22  culmination of that, and, for instance, we sometimes

         23  will have an unanticipated response. We never had a

         24  very large mail room. We have received thousands of

         25  phone calls for our new senior discount restaurant

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  guide. We knew it was going to be interesting, but,

          3  frankly, we didn't realize the immense interest that

          4  would be there.

          5                 So, I have gotten thousands and

          6  thousands of letters and phone calls, and so they

          7  have assisted our mail room in frankly getting those

          8  out to consumers that have called.

          9                 We never were a very large agency,

         10  you know, even in the most robust of times, and so

         11  none of those employees are filling holes that the

         12  agency has attrited over time. They have filled

         13  vacancies as employees have left.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay. In

         15  prior years, Commissioner, you did have some offices

         16  in the other boroughs; do you have any offices in

         17  the other boroughs? Do you have offices in the other

         18  boroughs? And if not, then tell me what your

         19  outreach mechanism is.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We have

         21  three offices outside of Manhattan. One I would

         22  describe as not an office but our Greenpoint test

         23  station. That is not a location where we see the

         24  public coming in, so I will not include it as an

         25  office, but it is something I think one can be aware
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          2  of. Many of our inspectors actually work out of that

          3  Greenpoint test station to the extent that we serve

          4  the public, the business communities, and a big

          5  chunk of the public we serve as well, small

          6  businesses, people that are coming in for licenses

          7  and so forth, and a good number of them for

          8  different licenses might be going to our Greenpoint

          9  stations. Fuel oil trucks, for instance, go directly

         10  to Greenpoint, tow trucks now go directly to

         11  Greenpoint. Many of the inspectors who work out of

         12  Greenpoint are based out of that station.

         13                 We then have two offices, one in

         14  Queens, at Queens Borough Hall, and then one in

         15  Staten Island. There are two DCA staff employees, as

         16  well as a core of volunteers at the Queens office.

         17  There is one staff person in the Staten Island

         18  Office also located in the Borough Hall there, and

         19  they are supplemented by a number of volunteers at

         20  all.

         21                 In addition, in terms of outreach, we

         22  have a Speakers Bureau which is available to civic

         23  groups, to community boards, to organizations that

         24  request our participation at a forum. Elected

         25  officials certainly are often requesting that as
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          2  well, and those employees, often DCA employees

          3  attend those meetings.

          4                 We also have a community board

          5  liaison who is charged with keeping in touch with

          6  community boards, going through their

          7  correspondence, she attends district service cabinet

          8  meetings and other meetings as well. And so that is

          9  primarily what we do in terms of community outreach,

         10  in addition, of course, to our media efforts and our

         11  hot line and our mail and so forth.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Let me ask

         13  you one final question, Commissioner. When you first

         14  assumed the position as Commissioner, what was the

         15  staff at that particular time? When did you assume

         16  this position, in 19 --

         17                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I came in

         18  January of --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: January of

         20  what, '95?

         21                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: January of

         22  '98.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: January of

         24  1998, okay.

         25                 What was the staff at that particular
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          2  time?

          3                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We were at

          4  235.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: At 235.

          6                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: To give you

          7  an overview --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: What is your

          9  current?

         10                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We have lost

         11  eight inspectors.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: You have

         13  lost eight inspectors.

         14                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We have

         15  gained over the year and a half period, two heads

         16  from the Department of Health, which came over to

         17  our agency to help oversee the health licensing we

         18  do.

         19                 We have gained in this upcoming

         20  budget, they are not here yet, we are gaining in

         21  this upcoming budget five heads to deal with the

         22  tobacco licensing. We are adding an administrative

         23  law judge, that is not coming in as in heads, but

         24  coming in as an employees. We have two ALJs that are

         25  paid out of our state tobacco grants and handle a
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          2  good number of the tobacco cases. Am I leaving

          3  anybody else out? We lost three, but then didn't

          4  lose three CAMIS heads.

          5                 So, we are going to be at 249 in

          6  Fiscal Year 2000.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I am sorry?

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The Exec

          9  budget for Fiscal Year 2000 calls for 249 heads at

         10  the agency. The current plan today, as of the last

         11  January Budget, has us at 244, and we actually have

         12  233 because of the vacancies.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

         16  Robles.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you,

         18  Madame Chair.

         19                 Commissioner, let me bring you to

         20  your tobacco enforcement, and that was an area that

         21  when I was the Chairman of the Youth Services

         22  Committee I aggressively pursued and had several of

         23  the Council with young people go out before the

         24  previous administration and this Administration now

         25  dealt, and I commend you for dealing with it.
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          2                 But let me just ask you now, because

          3  it is still a health issue, and one of the things

          4  that we tend to forget sometimes when it is DCA or

          5  Youth Services is that the selling of tobacco and

          6  the consumption by young people is a health issue,

          7  and as you know, there was a tobacco settlement of

          8  which we are using a lot of money for everything but

          9  health-related. Although, I must say that the

         10  Administration, and after we get finished here, I

         11  will preside over the Department of Health and

         12  Health Services, and in the preliminary budget,

         13  because of concerns and not money being spent, $15

         14  million was earmarked, now it is up to $30 million,

         15  for the purpose of education, outreach, what have

         16  you.

         17                 So, that is an area that I am very

         18  concerned with, particularly as the chair of the

         19  Health Committee. So, let me just -- because I know

         20  there was a phase one, you referred to phase two,

         21  and in phase one you say that you went from 51

         22  percent in phase one, to 38 percent.

         23                 Now, in phase two, at 38 percent, you

         24  still found that of the 1,747, you actually issued

         25  669 violations.
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          2                 Do we have a list of those 1,747

          3  locations by boroughs and where the 669 violations

          4  were at?

          5                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We indeed

          6  do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And that is in

          8  phase two. We have a similar with phase one, when

          9  you took it over?

         10                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Let me

         11  explain the way this thing has worked. We initially

         12  received an $800,000, $900,000 grant from the state,

         13  which most of the money went to DCA, was split

         14  between DCA and DOH, DOH did a piece of education

         15  and some mailings, primarily this money was used for

         16  enforcement. We went out and for the first time

         17  started a real comprehensive effort to get to every

         18  single retailer in the City.

         19                 In the past what was done, with the

         20  Council, with other commissioners, is on occasional

         21  times a year, just like DCA might do with a

         22  particular enforcement, focused on say toy guns

         23  where we will go out and do a sweep and take a look

         24  at what is going on in the City at any particular

         25  given time, but every single toy store is not being
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          2  visited on a daily basis to find out what is going

          3  on there, we will do that on an enforcement type of

          4  basis.

          5                 This money gave us for the first time

          6  the opportunity to actually say there are 15,000

          7  stores, newsstands, drug stores, retailers of

          8  tobacco in the City, let's visit every single one of

          9  them, and let's visit some of them two and three

         10  times to learn whether if we hit them once, do they

         11  continue to sell.

         12                 We hit about half the locations in

         13  the City during the first grant, five or six, I

         14  believe 7,000 out of the 15,000 locations. We spent

         15  a little bit of time during the end of the grant

         16  revisiting some of the offenders, to see whether

         17  they would sell again. We have a comprehensive list

         18  of that.

         19                 When we found that the grant was

         20  going to be renewed, which we did again receive this

         21  year, a second allocation of roughly the same amount

         22  of money, a little bit less, $600,000, $700,000, we

         23  didn't have to buy vehicles this time, for instance,

         24  we actually went out last time and bought a couple

         25  of mini vans because we used about 100 kids over the
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          2  course of the year and we want to transport them

          3  around safely.

          4                 We expect to hit almost every other

          5  store that we have not yet hit by the end of this

          6  period. Some will be hit actually two and three

          7  times. At the end of this, we would like to release

          8  a real Citywide map.

          9                 Right now the numbers are available

         10  certainly, and what we have been doing is releasing

         11  them neighborhood by neighborhood, once we hit every

         12  location in the neighborhood we announce this is

         13  what happened in Williamsburg, this is what happened

         14  in Brighton Beach.  Right now the inspections are

         15  done so that the stores have no sense of oh, my

         16  goodness, this neighborhood is going to be done

         17  next, I better be careful for two weeks and then I

         18  can let down my guard, we do it in a somewhat

         19  randomized basis. We either have a kid -- we try not

         20  to take a kid in his home neighborhood. We don't

         21  want him recognized afterwards and so forth. And so

         22  the sprinkling that you have throughout the city

         23  isn't a randomized sprinkling, and so you might look

         24  at the map right now and say, wait a minute,

         25  Flatbush was perfect, you know, there was zero for
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          2  four sales there, and other neighborhood had a much

          3  higher preponderance, but yet we haven't done the

          4  same number of buys there yet. We expect to visit

          5  every single location.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, I

          7  understand. But let me tell you where I am leading

          8  to. The fact is that these locations have to have a

          9  license to sell those cigarettes.

         10                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I don't

         11  think they do yet, and let me just explain, because

         12  there is a bill the Committee is working on, and I

         13  hope the full Council will take up.

         14                 It is really a misnomer right now,

         15  Council Member to describe the current system as an

         16  effective tobacco licensing system. What you get

         17  right now, if you want a tobacco license, is you get

         18  a tax license at the Department of Finance.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: You pay $10

         21  and you get it as a pro-forma basis, and the

         22  Department of Finance, which technically licenses

         23  these agencies but isn't really in the licensing

         24  business frankly uses these licenses to track the

         25  wholesaler. We have a bill before the Council and we
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          2  have some good discussions going on to actually

          3  create a formal DCA tobacco license which we would

          4  be able to revoke. And currently we actually have to

          5  hit you three times in two years, as you know. We

          6  would like to change that to make it two times in

          7  two years. Why should a store that has already sold

          8  twice have a chance to do it the third time?

          9                 So, I think that under the

         10  enforcement mechanism that we are trying to set up,

         11  you will really see a tobacco license.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: You and I used

         13  to wear hats, although I was there before you when I

         14  came down here, and then when you came down here you

         15  became the Commissioner and I became a

         16  Councilperson, but I am aware that while you are

         17  correct on the municipal -- the fact is when it

         18  comes to the cigarette industry, tobacco industry,

         19  there is a license that the state stamped.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: That's

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And that is

         23  not $10.

         24                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The

         25  wholesalers and the -- it's a minimal fee.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I understand

          3  that. But until we get to that -- I mean, I should

          4  only worry about New York City but I guess I keep

          5  remembering that hat, because I always loved the way

          6  they always want us to do it, the fact is that

          7  until, like the Chair said, we start enforcing what

          8  is in the books, regardless whether the fine is $10

          9  or $5,000, and they know that someone every so often

         10  will be looking down their back to make sure it gets

         11  done, then I must tell you that I am not convinced,

         12  with all due respect, that even when we pass this

         13  so-called law locally that you will have enough

         14  inspectors to do what the law will say for you to

         15  do.

         16                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I think the

         17  first time we take a cash register and empty the

         18  cigarettes out of a small retailer who earns a big

         19  chunk of his money from --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: But I hope we

         21  pass that law before the Year 2001, and I hope you

         22  start enforcing before the Year 2001, because I

         23  would love to see that happen before I gracefully

         24  become whatever else the future holds for me, okay?

         25                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Our budget
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          2  holds five additional positions, and if the Council

          3  passes it tomorrow, we will hire those people.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: In the

          5  meantime, can you provide this Committee and also my

          6  Committee, as chair of the Health Committee, these

          7  locations and these violations?

          8                 How many of these are repeat

          9  offenders? Because I will tell you, I am not waiting

         10  for a local law. There was a time when you used to

         11  publish, and so was the Department of Health, and I

         12  am telling you as an assemblyman and as a

         13  Councilperson before I became the Chairman of the

         14  Youth Service Committee or the Health Committee, and

         15  that is why I support -- there is a bill that I want

         16  to bring back that says for every violation in a

         17  restaurant, you print it like you used to. You know

         18  why? Because those locations in my district, I

         19  personally go after them. I personally go after them

         20  not only with you, the police, everyone who has a

         21  right to issue summonses. And I think what is

         22  lacking here is coordination. Of these violations,

         23  since I see Commissioner Cohen in the wings waiting,

         24  when you found these violations, have you shared

         25  that information with the Department of Health and
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          2  the Department of Youth Services, since it seems

          3  that those three agencies that --

          4                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We certainly

          5  haven't with Youth Services, since we --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: But you have

          7  with the Health Department?

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The Health

          9  Department.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: And we are

         12  their employee in some sense, in that this is a

         13  state health grant that the Health Department --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And the ones

         15  who are transfers really are DOH employees, not

         16  yours, correct?

         17                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: No, these

         18  are the DOH employees that came over.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, now --

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Let me let

         21  you know, we have been sharing, as we have completed

         22  neighborhoods, we have been giving the figures --

         23  the Chair of the Consumer Affairs Committee

         24  recently, for instance --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I understand.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            46

          1  DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: -- Got a

          3  list of every store in her area, and we would be

          4  pleased to give you every listing in your area.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Well, I am

          6  going to help you out today, because I would welcome

          7  any information that you provide the Chair, and if

          8  the Chair would provide it to me. But since

          9  Commissioner Neal Cohen is coming before my

         10  Committee next, I assure you that if you are saying

         11  you give it to him, then he has an obligation to

         12  give it to me as the Chairman of the Health

         13  Committee. So, I will get it from wherever I will

         14  get it. Right now I don't get it.

         15                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: It is

         16  published, since this is the state --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: One more quick

         18  question, if I may?

         19                 Let me tell you what happened to me.

         20  I also have a Business Improvement District which

         21  restricts vendors on what used to be called Grand

         22  Avenue which is now called (In Spanish) Puerto Rico,

         23  in my district. And I obviously don't have that much

         24  contact with your agency, but recently I like,

         25  because I live around there, and I went down Grand
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          2  Avenue and I noticed certain locations where they

          3  have a habit now of putting their mattresses out on

          4  the sidewalk, and that is how they display their --

          5  and I wrote to you, and I must tell you that it took

          6  a long time before I got a response back but

          7  constant calls.

          8                 The most recent contact, this is what

          9  was told to my staff, which is why I am raising the

         10  question, that I should also get the Police

         11  Department because you don't have the personnel, and

         12  you needed to go out there, and I don't know whether

         13  it was later in the day or what have you. So, as we

         14  discuss inspectors, my concern is there are areas

         15  that I commend the Administration and you, the

         16  Commissioner, for aggressively going, but there are

         17  other quality of life issues that somehow get lost

         18  in whatever targeted enforcement happens to be. And

         19  I must tell you that quality of life in my community

         20  and the communities of my colleagues, is that if you

         21  have an area which is restricted, and I think there

         22  should be a coordination so that when you do go out

         23  there it is not just you, it is the police, it is

         24  anybody else in Sanitation with the 18-inch or the

         25  15-inch, and I think that is what is lacking here.
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          2  So, I just throw that out as a suggestion, and thank

          3  you, Madame Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you. We

          5  have also been joined by Council Member Spigner.

          6                 Council Member Sabini.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

          8  Madame Chair.

          9                 Very briefly, in the analysis of the

         10  budget done by our Finance staff, there is 190,000

         11  new revenue on stoopline stand enforcement. I am

         12  wondering how you get to that number, if you are

         13  going to do something different or assign new people

         14  to it?

         15                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We have over

         16  the last several months been focusing even more

         17  aggressively on this issue. It is one of the areas

         18  where we receive a substantial number of complaints

         19  and indeed we have been issuing a much larger number

         20  of fines, as well as actually revoking licenses or

         21  at least threatening to revoke, and then seeing if

         22  we --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: In my district

         24  you revoked -- before you were Commissioner,

         25  Commissioner Maldonado had several revoked, because
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          2  as I made the case of the ALJ, what is the good of

          3  having a license if you continually abuse the

          4  license?

          5                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Right. Our

          6  continued or renewed harder line has resulted in

          7  many of these stands certainly coming in and paying

          8  the fines for fear of having a revocation happening

          9  to them. And as a result, and we are going to

         10  continue in that direction, so we expect -- frankly,

         11  I hope we don't make that target, because if we do

         12  this effectively, we will get the kind of compliance

         13  we want.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: But given

         16  the reality of the last couple of months, it is an

         17  area that we are going to continue aggressively

         18  issuing fines and revoking.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We have

         20  contributed to the business stream of this city in

         21  terms of contractors, because in stores whose

         22  licenses DCA rightfully revoked, they have built the

         23  stand inward, from the window building line in,

         24  which is great. And I make no apologies for that,

         25  that they have to spend that money, because they
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          2  were abusing their privileges to use the sidewalks.

          3                 I am wondering if you have done an

          4  analysis of where violations of stoopline stands

          5  occur? Are they Citywide, or is there sort of hot

          6  spots where five or ten businesses think they can

          7  get away with them and the five or ten become 20?

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We haven't

          9  done any particularly scientific analysis, although

         10  that information is available to us. Frankly, there

         11  is however a repeated problem in a number of

         12  neighborhoods where we continually receive a

         13  substantial number of complaints, MUJ Kings Highway,

         14  Council Member Freed's district, we hear about it in

         15  your district, wherever there are a substantial

         16  number of fruit and vegetable locations, flower

         17  shops, particularly where there are a large number.

         18  Often if there is just one, they will live within

         19  the law.

         20                 What ends up happening is when there

         21  is a substantial number, one of the ways the

         22  businesses seem to compete with each other is by

         23  offering more and more merchandise and we will issue

         24  a fine to one fellow who will say, well, I am doing

         25  it because I have got to have more out than the guy
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          2  next door, and it becomes a race to the bottom.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That is what

          4  we have.

          5                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

          6                 Thank you, Commissioner.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

          8  Freed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you. I

         10  have a very quick question. I was noticing in I

         11  guess your testimony, you now have the exclusive

         12  jurisdiction over newsstands?

         13                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We do,

         14  although let me qualify that. We do it with DOT. We

         15  issue the license, DOT is responsible for the

         16  pedestrian count and the inspection but we are the

         17  exclusive licensing agency right now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, that is

         19  what I was wondering, if you do inspections or if

         20  you do reviews. And if there has been a place that

         21  has licensed and if there is a problem with it, do

         22  you review that or do we have to go through DOT?

         23                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: You would

         24  contact us.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

          4  Spigner.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes.

          6  Commissioner, in the line of enforcement, how do you

          7  selectively enforce the rules and regulations

          8  against peddlers?

          9                 I know you don't permit peddlers on

         10  125th Street. You just don't permit it. For awhile

         11  you permitted it, then you decided you wouldn't

         12  permit it.

         13                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I must

         14  confess that this agency is not a member of the

         15  Street Vendor Review Panel, which makes those

         16  decisions, so we assist in the enforcement with the

         17  Police Department but we are actually not part of

         18  that decision-making process.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, you

         20  don't enforce against street peddlers?

         21                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We enforce.

         22  We don't sit on the panel that makes the rules --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: No, I am

         24  talking about enforcement. Do you enforce against

         25  street peddlers?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We do, with

          3  the Police Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Do you

          5  enforce against street peddlers?

          6                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The answer

          7  is yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: All right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: But --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Go ahead.

         11                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We have two

         12  individuals who spend most of their time solely

         13  dealing with vendor enforcement.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Two?

         15                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Two.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: That is for

         17  what blocks?

         18                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: They spend a

         19  good deal of their time training, as these rules

         20  have now become enormously complex between the art

         21  and the street vendor and the veteran vendor, they

         22  spend a good portion of their time training the

         23  Police Department.

         24                 We find that PD is very effective in

         25  the areas that have a large volume of peddler
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          2  activity, but, frankly, there are a lot of different

          3  neighborhoods throughout the City and there are very

          4  different rules, depending on what neighborhood you

          5  are in.

          6                 And so what our enforcement team

          7  does, frankly, they spend a good deal of time going

          8  to precincts throughout the City to help make sure

          9  that the local officers there on patrol know very

         10  well the rules that apply to the peddlers in their

         11  area. They do go out on special sweeps, they do go

         12  out five days a week, if they are not doing Police

         13  Department training, but if there is an area that

         14  has a significant problem, and a lot of merchandise

         15  needs to be seized, for instance, we coordinate that

         16  with the Police Department, we go out with them.

         17                 The Health vendors, frankly, are not

         18  ours. Often what we find is that when there is a

         19  problem, it is not just a general vendor. There will

         20  be a strip where there are a couple of illegal

         21  vendors, there will also be some food vendors and

         22  there will be some general vendors, so we usually

         23  put together a group, and if there is a particular

         24  area, and we will go out together with Health, we

         25  will go out together with PD, so that we can in a
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          2  comprehensive way deal with the problems on that

          3  issue.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So, wherever

          5  I see peddlers on a sort of permanent basis, I

          6  should assume that they have a right to be there?

          7                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: If they are

          8  unlicensed, we certainly want to know about it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I don't know

         10  whether they are licensed or unlicensed.

         11                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: They will be

         12  wearing a license around their neck.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So anyone

         14  without a license around his neck, like the guys

         15  over here on the corner, then they are illegal,

         16  right?

         17                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: If they

         18  don't have a license.

         19                 Or if, as I think Council Member

         20  Sabini described, if they have a license, they are

         21  displaying their stuff on a blanket on a floor, that

         22  is not permissible either.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, we are

         24  doing a pretty poor enforcement job, that is all I

         25  can tell you. It is selective enforcement at its
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          2  worst. It is selective enforcement at its worst.

          3  Those people, some people are denied. I am not for

          4  the vendor situation, because I think it is not the

          5  best use of our streets when you can't walk, like

          6  you walk over here at Broadway and Church, you just

          7  can't walk on that corner, it is probably the

          8  busiest corner, and the vending goes on there

          9  year-round, and nobody does anything about it.

         10                 I just use that as an example. I have

         11  got a situation in my district and other parts of

         12  town where you just are doing nothing about it. You

         13  are just not doing it, whether it is your fault, or

         14  the Police Department's fault, it is just not being

         15  done.

         16                 So, we might as well just let them

         17  all vend on 125th Street and Fifth Avenue, and every

         18  dog-gone place else, if we are going to selectively

         19  enforce against some and not all.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just want to

         21  note that one of the things I have found, the

         22  vendors that sell nuts in the streets, the roasted

         23  nuts, I happened to experience the vendor putting

         24  the oil at the end of the evening down into the

         25  sewer. I saw him putting it down the sewer and I
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          2  started screaming at him.

          3                 Okay, with that, Council Member

          4  Clarke.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

          6  Madame Chair.

          7                 Commissioner, can you tell me who

          8  either regulates licenses, supervises or looks at

          9  auto repair shops?

         10                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The State

         11  licenses auto repair shops. However, if the auto

         12  repair shop sells used parts, which some do, they

         13  need to have a DCA second dealer license. But the

         14  primarily Department of Motor Vehicle license is

         15  issued by the state.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, then if

         17  that auto repair shop repairs in the street, puts

         18  oil in the street and otherwise not observe good

         19  health laws, who then enforces against that?

         20                 Once the state gives them whatever

         21  the paper is that they ought to have, who inspects

         22  to make sure that they have become good businesses

         23  and good business partners in the City of New York?

         24                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: The state

         25  has the primary responsibility, yes. They are a
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          2  licensing agency. If they are breaking any city

          3  laws, if they are selling a vehicle improperly or

          4  selling a lemon or so forth, the Department of

          5  Consumer Affairs will be involved. If they are

          6  selling used parts or trying to pass off a used part

          7  as new or something like that, our agency would be

          8  involved.

          9                 If they are actually repairing a

         10  vehicle on the sidewalk, they would be violating

         11  DOT, or PD would be able to respond to or Sanitation

         12  for ticketing them for, you know, either making a

         13  mess on the sidewalk or pouring things in the street

         14  or actually physically blocking traffic. So, those

         15  would be those agencies.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         19                 This meeting is adjourned.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Thank you.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 2:25 p.m.)
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